
Stayton City Council Agenda Page 1 of 3 
January 16, 2024  

The City of Stayton is an Equal Opportunity Institution 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, January 16, 2024 

Stayton Community Center 
400 W. Virginia Street 

Stayton, Oregon 97383 

HYBRID MEETING 

The Stayton City Council will be holding a hybrid meeting utilizing Zoom video conferencing software. 
The meeting will be in-person but can also be live streamed on the City of Stayton’s YouTube account. 
Please use the following option to view the meeting: 

• 7:00 p.m. – City Council Regular Session – https://youtube.com/live/WiJF2Po73zI

Public Comment and Public Hearing Testimony: Meetings allow for in-person, virtual, or written public 
comment. If a community member has a barrier which prevents them from participating via one of the 
methods below, they should contact City staff at citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov no less than 
three hours prior to the meeting start time to make arrangements to participate.  

Comments and testimony are limited to three minutes. All parties interested in providing public 
comment or testifying as part of a public hearing shall participate using one of the following methods:   

• In-Person Comment: Parties interested in providing in-person verbal public comment shall fill
out a “Request for Recognition” form available at the meeting. Forms must be filled out and
submitted to the Assistant City Manager or designee prior to the meeting start time.

• Video or Audio Conference Call: Parties interested in providing virtual public comment shall
contact City staff at citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov at least three hours prior to the
meeting start time with their request. Staff will collect their contact information and provide
them with information on how to access the meeting to provide comments.

• Written Comment: Written comment submitted to citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov at
least three hours prior to the meeting start time will be provided to the public body in advance
of the meeting and added to the City Council’s webpage where agenda packets are posted.

1. CALL TO ORDER 7:00 PM 

2. FLAG SALUTE

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS
a. Additions to the agenda
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.

1

https://youtube.com/live/WiJF2Po73zI
mailto:citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov
mailto:citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov
mailto:citygovernment@staytonoregon.gov


  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 3 
January 16, 2024  

The City of Stayton is an Equal Opportunity Institution 

 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. December 18, 2023 City Council Work Session Minutes 
b. December 18, 2023 City Council Regular Session Minutes  
c. Resolution No. 1086, Authorizing Stormwater Master Plan Update 
d. Resolution No. 1088, Appointing Denise Busch, and Leonard Hays to the Budget 

Committee  
 
 

6. PRESENTATIONS   
a. Community Partner –Student Representatives of North Santiam School District 
 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

8. GENERAL BUSINESS    
Discussion of ARPA Fund Request from County   INFORMATIONAL 
a.    Staff Report – Julia Hajduk 
b. Public Comment  
c. Council Discussion  

 
 

9. COMMUNICATION FROM CITY STAFF 
 
 

10. COMMUNICATION FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL  
 
 

11. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired or other 
accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. If you require special 

accommodations, contact City Hall at (503) 769-3425. 

2



  

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 3 
January 16, 2024  

The City of Stayton is an Equal Opportunity Institution 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS  
JANUARY 2024 

Wednesday January 17  Library Board 6:00 p.m.  Stayton Public Library  
Monday January 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center 

FEBRUARY 2024 

Monday February 5 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/DvYbtXp_qIM  
Tuesday February 6 Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices 
Monday February 19 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF PRESIDENTS’ DAY HOLIDAY  
Tuesday  February 20 City Council  7:00 p.m.  https://youtube.com/live/QDm_gphtm6k  

Wednesday February 21 Library Board 6:00 p.m.  Stayton Public Library  
Monday February 26 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center 

MARCH 2024 

Monday March 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/SIrzRPKDPw8  
Tuesday March 5 Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices 
Monday March 18 City Council  7:00 p.m.  https://youtube.com/live/7u1U0wpt_JU  

Wednesday March 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m.  Stayton Public Library  
Monday March 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center 

APRIL 2024 

Monday April 1 City Council  7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/oaTNEJWBvfs 
Tuesday  April 2  Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices 
Monday April 15 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/A_FXgnnKhlg 

Wednesday April 17 Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library 
Monday April 29 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center 

MAY 2024 

Monday May 6 City Council  7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/Pi87xJhIfGE 
Tuesday  May 7  Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices 
Monday May 13 Budget Committee   
Tuesday May 14 Budget Committee   

Wednesday  May 15 Budget Committee   
Wednesday May 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library 

Monday May 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/bhYOUjWYS58 
Monday May 27 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY HOLIDAY  
Tuesday May 28 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center 

JUNE 2024 

Monday June 3 City Council  7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/gAhI3Aa0qQk 
Tuesday  June 4  Parks and Recreation Board 6:00 p.m. Public Works / Planning Offices 
Monday June 17 City Council 7:00 p.m. https://youtube.com/live/CbxRQKofXts 

Wednesday June 19 Library Board 6:00 p.m. Stayton Public Library 
Monday June 24 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Stayton Community Center 

 

3

https://youtube.com/live/DvYbtXp_qIM
https://youtube.com/live/QDm_gphtm6k
https://youtube.com/live/SIrzRPKDPw8
https://youtube.com/live/7u1U0wpt_JU
https://youtube.com/live/oaTNEJWBvfs
https://youtube.com/live/A_FXgnnKhlg
https://youtube.com/live/Pi87xJhIfGE
https://youtube.com/live/bhYOUjWYS58
https://youtube.com/live/gAhI3Aa0qQk
https://youtube.com/live/CbxRQKofXts


 

Stayton City Council Work Session Minutes         Page 1 of 1 
December 18, 2023 

Stayton City Council  
Work Session  

 December 18, 2023 

LOCATION:  STAYTON PUBLIC LIBRARY, 515 N. FIRST AVENUE, STAYTON 

Time Start:  6:00 P.M.     Time End:  6:26 P.M. 

MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 
 STAYTON STAFF  

Mayor Brian Quigley  Julia Hajduk, City Manager 
Councilor David Giglio  Alissa Angelo, Assistant City Manager  
Councilor Ben McDonald  James Brand, Finance Director 
Councilor Jordan Ohrt (excused) Gwen Johns, Police Chief  
Councilor David Patty  Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director (excused) 
Councilor Steve Sims Janna Moser, Library Director (excused) 
 Jennifer Siciliano, Community & Economic Development (excused) 
 Melanie Raba, Office Specialist (excused) 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

Discuss Community Public Safety Commission Reboot 
 

Chief Johns shared the history of the Public Safety 
Commission and what other jurisdictions do. Council 
discussion of what they hope to see from the commission 
and other options outside of a commission. 

 
APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 16TH DAY OF JANUARY 2024, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 
 

Date:    By:   
  Brian Quigley, Mayor 
 
Date:   Attest:   
   Julia Hajduk, City Manager 

4



Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 1 of 3 
December 4, 2023 

City of Stayton  
City Council Minutes 
December 18, 2023 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA, STAYTON 
Time Start:  7:00 P.M.     Time End:  8:02 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 
COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF 

Mayor Brian Quigley Julia Hajduk, City Manager 
Councilor David Giglio Alissa Angelo, Assistant City Manager 
Councilor Ben McDonald Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Jordan Ohrt Gwen Johns, Police Chief 
Councilor David Patty Janna Moser, Library Director 
Councilor Stephen Sims James Brand, Finance Director 

Jennifer Siciliano, Community & Economic Development Director 
Melanie Raba, Office Specialist 

AGENDA ACTIONS 
REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the agenda

b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest,
Bias, etc.

None. 

None. 

Public Comment None. 

Consent Agenda 
a. December 4, 2023 City Council Work Session Minutes
b. December 4, 2023 City Council Regular Session

Minutes

Motion from Councilor Giglio, seconded by Councilor Patty, 
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. Motion 
passed 4:0. 

Presentations 
a. Small Municipalities Advocacy Coalition Sean Tate with the Small Municipalities Advocacy Coalition 

provided a presentation to the Council regarding the work 
the group is doing for small municipalities. 

Public Hearing None. 

General Business 
Resolution No. 1084, Adopting the City of Stayton 
Addendum to the Marion County Multi-Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan 
a. Staff Report – Alissa Angelo

b. Public Comment

c. Council Discussion

d. Council Decision

Ms. Angelo reviewed the staff report. 

None.  

None. 

Motion from Councilor Patty, seconded by Councilor Giglio, 

5



Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 2 of 3 
December 4, 2023 

Resolution No. 1082, Delegating Authority to the Mayor 
to Advocate on Behalf of the City to Elected Officials 
a. Staff Report – Julia Hajduk

b. Public Comment

c. Council Discussion

d. Council Decision

Resolution No. 1083, Formalizing a Commercial Use 
Conversion SDC Policy 
a. Staff Report – Julia Hajduk

b. Public Comment

c. Council Discussion

d. Council Decision

Resolution No. 1085, Authorizing Submittal of Loan 
Application for Sewer Upgrades 
a. Staff Report – James Brand

b. Public Comment

c. Council Discussion

d. Council Decision

Resolution No. 1087, Adopting an Amendment to the 
2023-24 Fiscal Year Water Rates 
a. Staff Report – James Brand

b. Public Comment

c. Council Discussion

to approve Resolution No. 1084, adopting the City of 
Stayton Addendum to the Marion County Jurisdictional 
Hazard Mitigation Plan as amended. Motion passed 4:0. 

Ms. Hajduk reviewed the staff report. 

None. 

Council discussion on results of this delegation to the 
Mayor over the past year. 

Motion from Councilor McDonald, seconded by Councilor 
Giglio, to approve Resolution No. 1082, delegating authority 
to the Mayor to advocate on behalf of the City to elected 
officials, as presented. Motion passed 4:0.  

Ms. Hajduk reviewed the staff report. 

None.  

Council question regarding SDC calculations. Ms. Hajduk 
responded. 

Motion from Councilor Patty, seconded by Councilor 
McDonald, to approve Resolution No. 1083, formalizing a 
commercial use conversion SDC policy, as presented. 
Motion passed 4:0. 

Mr. Brand reviewed his staff report. 

None.  

Council discussion on loans, loan amount, and loan 
forgiveness.  

Motion from Councilor Patty, seconded by Councilor Sims, 
to approve Resolution No. 1085, authorizing submittal of a 
loan application for sewer upgrades. Motion passes 4:0. 

Mr. Brand reviewed the staff report.  

None. 

Council question on proposed correction. Staff responded. 

6



Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes       Page 3 of 3 
December 4, 2023 

d. Council Decision Motion from Councilor Giglio, seconded by Councilor 
McDonald, to adopt Resolution No. 1087, adopting an 
amendment to the 2023-24 fiscal year fee schedule related 
to water rates. Motion passed 4:0. 

Communications from City Staff 
a. Street Sweeper Presentation – Lance Ludwick Mr. Ludwick reviewed his presentation with the Council. 

Ms. Hajduk shared the new pool tokens provided to Council 
for a free swim at the Pool. 

Communications from Mayor and Council Council requested discussion of the Small Municipalities 
Advocacy Coalition at an upcoming meeting.  

Brief discussion of school government representatives 
attending an upcoming meeting.  

Mayor Quigley spoke about the “If I Were Mayor” contest. 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 16TH DAY OF JANUARY 2024, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date: By: 
Brian Quigley, Mayor 

Date: Attest: 
Julia Hajduk, City Manager 

7



Resolution 1086 - Award of Contract for Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 1 of 3 
January 16, 2024 

CITY OF STAYTON 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Mayor Brian Quigley and the Stayton City Council 

FROM: Lance S. Ludwick, P.E., Director of Public Works 

DATE:  January 16, 2024 

SUBJECT: Resolution 1086 - Award of Contract for Storm Water Master 
Plan Update 

ISSUE 

Should the Stayton City Council approve Resolution 1086 and award a consultant contract for 
the Storm Water Master Plan Update to Keller Associates in the amount of $ 414,578.00? 

ENCLOSURE(S) 

• City of Stayton Request for Proposals
• Keller Associates Proposal
• Resolution No. 1086

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The existing Storm Water Master Plan (SWMP) was adopted by the City Council in May 2009. 

The existing SWMP estimated a continued growth rate of 3.35%. Buildout of the Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB) was projected to occur sometime around 2032. The growth rate slowed 
considerably and has never met the 3.35% growth rate projections.  As such, the size and scope 
of the Capital Projects identified in the SWMP are in question and includes recommendations 
that no longer seem necessary or feasible for construction within a 20-year planning horizon. 

The City updated its Comprehensive Plan in 2013, with a revised Comprehensive Plan Map 
adopted at that time.  The assumptions for development patterns included within the 2009 
SWMP are no longer in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan Map.   

Updating the City’s Master Plans has been a City Council Goal since 2015-2016 and was 
reaffirmed during the March 11th, 2023, City Council Goal Setting session.  Objective 1.7; 
Complete Infrastructure Master Plans was established during the 2023 goal setting session. 

8



 
Resolution 1086 - Award of Contract for Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 2 of 3  
January 16, 2024 

The Storm Water Master Plan Update Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised in the 
Daily Journal of Commerce (DJC) on July 21, 2023.   The City of Stayton received one (1) 
sealed proposal from Keller Associates of Salem, Oregon by the closing deadline of August 
22nd, 2023.  
 
City staff formed a committee to review and score the proposal independently. The scoring 
criterion was outlined in the RFP and is shown below: 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Below is a compilation of the six (6) reviewer scores combined into one overall score.  
 

Stormwater Master Plan Proposal Scoring Matrix Worksheet  
 Keller Associates Proposal Reviewer 1 2 3 4 5 6   

 
October 2, 2023 

         

  

Content and Evaluation Criteria Maximum 
Possible 

Score 

Score Score Score Score Score Score 

  
1 Introductory Letter / Narrative 5 5 5 4 5 5 5   
2 Key Personnel Qualifications 40 36 40 34 30 35 38   

3 
Project Scope and Understanding of the 
Work 40 36 40 36 30 35 38   

4 Project Schedule (11"x17" allowed) 10 7 10 9 8 10 9   
5 Additional Supporting Information 5 4 5 5 5 3 5   
6 Total Score 100 88 95 88 73 85 95 524 Total 

           
         87 Ave. 

 
After reviewing the scores and discussing the proposal in detail, the group recommended the 
City move forward with negotiating a contract with Keller Associates to perform the Storm 
Water Master Plan Update. Staff met with Keller Associates to discuss the scope of work and 
negotiated financial compensation for the work.  

 
CONTENT AND 
EVALUATION CRITERIA 

 
MAXIMUM 

SCORE 
 
1. Introductory letter 

 
5 

 
2. Key personnel qualifications 

 
40 

 
3. Project scope and understanding 

 
40 

 
4. Project schedule (11” x 17” allowed) 

 
10 

 
5. Additional supporting information 

 
5 

 
TOTALS 

 
100 

9



 
Resolution 1086 - Award of Contract for Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 3 of 3  
January 16, 2024 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

The estimated cost to complete the Storm Water Master Plan Update is up to $414,578.00.  
Task 11 of the Scope of Work includes installing piezometers at 10 locations throughout the 
City. This will allow us to measure and track groundwater which will help make key decisions 
on where to construct Stormwater Management Facilities. This is a $112, 819.00 task item 
and can be reduced by reducing the number of piezometers installed. City staff and the 
consultants will work through this issue and determine the best practice for the City.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

City Staff reviewed and scored the proposals submitted by Keller Associates for the 
Storm Water Master Plan Update and recommends the City Council Approve Resolution 
1086 and award the contract to Keller Associates at this time. 
 
OPTIONS 

1) Approve Resolution 1086 and Award of Contract to Keller Associates for updating 
the Storm Water Master Plan in the amount of; up to $414,578.00. 
 

2) Reject all bids. 
          
MOTION 

No motion necessary; consent agenda approval.  
 
 
 
 

10



 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 

City of Stayton 
Stormwater Master Plan Update 

 
 

Proposal Due Date: 
AUGUST 22, 2023, AT 2:00 P.M. LOCAL TIME 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON,  

MARION COUNTY, 

OREGON 
 

DATED THIS JULY 21, 2023 

 
THIS ANNOUNCMENT IS NOT AN IMPLIED CONTRACT AND MAY BE MODIFIED OR REVOKED WITHOUT NOTICE. 

11



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page ii 

 Table of Contents 
Section 1 - General Information ................................................................................................ 1 

1.1 – Request for Proposals .............................................................................................................1 
1.2 – Background and Objective ......................................................................................................1 
1.3 – Proposal Due Date and Issuing Office.....................................................................................3 
1.4 – Questions/Clarifications .........................................................................................................4 
1.5 – Preliminary Schedule ..............................................................................................................4 
1.6 – Limitations ..............................................................................................................................4 
1.7 – Public Records .........................................................................................................................5 
1.8 – Proposal Withdrawal ..............................................................................................................6 
1.9 – Proposal Protests ....................................................................................................................6 
1.10 – Recycled Products Statement ...............................................................................................6 

Section 2 - Proposal Requirements .......................................................................................... 6 

2.1 – General Information ...............................................................................................................6 
2.2 – Contents of the Proposal ........................................................................................................7 

2.2.1 – Introductory Letter/Narrative ......................................................................................7 
2.2.2 – Table of Contents..........................................................................................................7 
2.2.3 – Key Personnel Qualifications ........................................................................................7 
2.2.4 – Project Scope and Understanding of the Work ............................................................8 
2.2.5 – Project Schedule ...........................................................................................................8 
2.2.6 – Additional Supporting Information ..............................................................................9 

2.3 – Consultant’s Fee Schedule ......................................................................................................9 
2.4 – Insurance Requirements .........................................................................................................9 
2.5 – Local/State/Federal Requirements .........................................................................................9 

Section 3 – Preliminary Scope of Work ................................................................................. 10 

3.1 – General ..................................................................................................................................10 
3.2 – Preliminary Work Tasks ........................................................................................................10 

3.2.1 – Task 1 – Project Management ....................................................................................10 
3.2.2 – Task 2 – Existing Study Area Characteristics ..............................................................11 
3.2.3 – Task 3 – Stormwater System Hydrologic and Hydraulic Design Criteria ....................12 
3.2.4 – Task 4 – Existing Stormwater System Inventory and Condition Assessment ............12 
3.2.5 – Task 5 – Stormwater Model Development.................................................................13 
3.2.6 – Task 6 – Existing Stormwater System Analysis ...........................................................13 
3.2.7 – Task 7 – Future Stormwater System Analysis .............................................................14 
3.2.8 – Task 8 – Stormwater Quality and State and Federal Regulatory Requirements........15 
3.2.9 – Task 9 – Stormwater Operation and Maintenance Evaluation ..................................15 
3.2.10 – Task 10 – Recommendations and Capital Improvement Plan .................................15 
3.2.11 – Task 11 – Stormwater System Financing Plan, System Development Charge 

Update, and Storm Drainage Monthly Utility Rate Update .....................16 
3.2.12 – Task 12 – Install Groundwater Monitoring Wells and Perform Depth to 

Groundwater Investigation ......................................................................17 
3.2.13 – Task 13 – Public Involvement and City Presentations ..............................................19 

12



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page iii 

3.2.14 – Task 14 – Develop Draft Policy, Code and Ordinance Revisions ..............................19 
3.2.15 – Task 15 – Final Reports/Documentation ..................................................................20 

Section 4 – Proposal Evaluation and Selection ........................................................ 20 

4.1 – Evaluation and Selection Criteria ..........................................................................................20 
4.2 – Final Selection and Award ....................................................................................................21 
4.3 – Contract Execution ................................................................................................................21 

Appendices ............................................................................................................. 22 

Attachment A – Sample Contract (Professional Services Agreement) 

13



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 1 of 22 

 Section 1 - General Information 
1.1 – Request for Proposals 
The City of Stayton (City), through the Public Works Department, is requesting proposals from firms 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant") qualified and interested in providing professional 
engineering services to the City for the completion of an update to the Stormwater Master Plan 
(SWMP) and provide services for the installation and monitoring of 10 groundwater monitoring 
wells throughout the City for observing groundwater levels (hereinafter referred to as the 
"Project"). 
 
This request for proposal (RFP) contains administrative and procedural information concerning 
instructions for preparation and submittal of Proposals, a preliminary schedule and scope of work, 
an explanation of how the Proposals will be evaluated, and conditions that will be included in any 
Contract which may be awarded as a result of this RFP.  Special bindings, colored displays, and 
promotional materials, etc., are not necessary.  Emphasis should be on completeness and clarity of 
the content. 
 
This RFP is not all-inclusive.  The City encourages Consultants to exercise their innovation, sound 
professional judgment, experience, and knowledge.  Consultants are invited to propose alternative 
or additive scopes of work the Consultant believes will better reflect the goals of the City and the 
funding available.  The City reserves the right to negotiate a final scope and cost with the selected 
Consultant. 
 
A City selection review committee will evaluate the Proposals, interview candidate firms if deemed 
necessary, score the Proposals as defined in this RFP, and recommend award to the City Council.  
Proposals will be received until 2:00 pm (local time) August 22, 2023.   
 
The City may reject any Proposal not in compliance with all prescribed public bidding procedures 
and requirements and may reject for good cause any or all Proposals upon a finding of the City if it is 
in the public interest to do so. 

1.2 – Background and Objective 
The City of Stayton is located in Marion County, Oregon, approximately 12 miles southeast of Salem 
along the North Santiam River.  The City consists of approximately 3.2 square miles of land and has 
experienced steady growth over the past several decades.  Following a decline in growth during the 
2010s, growth has resumed in recent years with approximately 300 new dwelling having been 
constructed.  The City’s existing SWMP was completed by Keller Associates, Inc. more than a decade 
ago in May 2008.  The City recognizes changes in growth projections, land use, zoning, urban 
growth, and new stormwater requirements that have occurred since the completion of the 2008 
SWMP, and therefore, the need for a SWMP update. 
 

14



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 2 of 22 

The City’s current inventory indicates that the stormwater system is comprised of over 27 miles of 
storm drainage pipe, 980 catch basins, 16 public detention facilities, and 69 outfalls to receiving 
water bodies, with approximately 4 miles of open channel. 

The current SWMP plan was written with assumptions of growth rates that have not been borne out 
and before revision of the Public Works Design Standards to implement more stringent stormwater 
management practices and implement “Low Impact Development” principles.  The SWMP study will 
be based on current population projections from Portland State University and the current PWDS. 

The SWMP study area includes the entire City of Stayton Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), but needs 
to recognize conditions, trends, and development activity beyond the UGB.  The study area will also 
include storm drainage facilities from streets and highways that are under various local, county and 
state jurisdictions.  The selected Consultant shall be responsible for coordination of the various 
levels of government, as well as coordinating the public’s involvement in the development of the 
plan. 

The purpose of the SWMP update is to evaluate the City’s existing storm drainage system, study 
area characteristics, stormwater planning, operation, and provide recommended stormwater 
system improvements.  The SWMP update will evaluate the various stormwater basins within the 
City’s UGB and will recommend priority stormwater system improvements for surface water 
collection, conveyance, stormwater quality, infiltration, detention, and discharge.   

Project objectives include: 
A. Provide an updated analysis of the existing stormwater system including an inventory and

evaluation to provide the basis for developing the recommended stormwater system
improvements.

B. Recommend improvements and additions to the stormwater system so that it will continue
to adequately serve the City over a 20-year planning period.  These improvements will
include rehabilitation and upgrading of existing stormwater system plus proposed storm
drainage extensions to new areas to meet current and future requirements.

C. Review the stormwater operations and maintenance program, facilities, and procedures,
and recommend any additions and changes so that the stormwater system can be
maintained in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

D. Develop a stormwater capital improvement plan to adequately plan for the short-term, mid-
term, and long-term stormwater system needs.

E. Install 10 temporary groundwater monitoring wells throughout the City for the purpose of
observing monthly groundwater levels for 2 years, in order to determine the City’s high
seasonal groundwater elevations for the various stormwater basins.  A separate
memorandum will be prepared by the consultant showing the results of the two-year study.

F. Update the funding aspects of the SWMP that explain how the recommended stormwater
improvement projects identified in the capital improvement plan will be able to be funded
so the stormwater system improvement projects can be constructed.

G. Review and evaluate existing stormwater agreements, policies, standards, and laws relevant
to the SWMP to ensure that the City’s SWMP reflects and is consistent with local, county,
and state stormwater agreements, policies, and standards, and is in compliance with state
and federal stormwater regulatory requirements.  Recommend changes to existing

15



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 3 of 22 

stormwater plans, policies, and standards to meet the needs of the community and for state 
and federal stormwater regulatory compliance.  Include stormwater best management 
practice strategies to implement the City’s TMDL Action Plan. 

 
This project is one that Stayton citizens have a considerable amount of interest in.  There will be a 
Technical Advisory Committee and a Citizen Advisory Committee for this project.  The Consultant 
should plan on a minimum of 3 and maximum of 4 meetings with each Committee.  The Consultant 
will complete the notices, agendas, minutes, and any handouts/presentations for these meetings.  
The City will send out the notices, etc. 
 
Adoption of the SWMP Update will constitute an amendment of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  
The Consultant will attend the Planning Commission public hearing and the City Council public 
hearing required prior to final adoption by the City Council. 
 
Below are some resources that are available: 

A. City of Stayton Comprehensive Plan (on the website). 
B. City of Stayton Municipal Code (on the website). 
C. City of Stayton Public Works Design Standards (on the website). 
D. City of Stayton Geographical Information System (GIS) data.        
E. Executive Summary of the 2008 Stormwater Master Plan. 
F. Current XP-SWMM Model of Storm Drainage System from 2008 to selected Consultant. 
G. Available Record Drawings. 

1.3 – Proposal Due Date and Issuing Office 
Submit three (3) copies of the Proposal in a sealed envelope marked “PROPOSAL FOR SWMP 
UPDATE” and submit one (1) copy of the Proposal Cost of Services in a separate sealed envelope 
marked “PROPOSAL FOR SWMP UPDATE COST OF SERVICES” to the following: 
 

City of Stayton 
Attn: Lance Ludwick, P.E., Public Works Director 

362. N. Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR  97383 

 
Proposals must be received by the City no later than 2:00 pm (local time) August 22, 2023.  
Consultants who wish to submit Proposals by mail may do so at their own risk by mailing their 
Proposal to the above address.  The City assumes no responsibility for delayed or undelivered mail 
or express packages.  Proposals which are not delivered to City Hall by the above specified time and 
date will not be considered.  Proposals submitted via oral, electronic mail, or facsimile will not be 
considered or accepted. 
 
The City will not be holding a pre-Proposal meeting.  Please contact the City at the below referenced 
contact information with any questions or inquiries regarding this RFP. 

16



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 4 of 22 

1.4 – Questions/Clarifications  
All questions and inquiries regarding this RFP shall be submitted via email on or before 2:00 pm 
(local time) August 15, 2023.  Should any Consultant be in doubt as to the true meaning of any 
portion of this RFP, or should the Consultant find any ambiguity, inconsistency, or omission therein, 
the Consultant shall make a written request for an official clarification or correction.  All questions 
and inquiries concerning this RFP shall be directed to the following:  

 
Lance Ludwick, P.E./Public Works Director 

lludwick@staytonoregon.gov 
503.769.2919  

 
Unauthorized contact with other City employees may result in disqualification.  The City will not be 
bound by oral responses to inquiries or written responses other than official written addenda. 
 
Any clarifications, corrections, or additions to this RFP by the City will be made only as an official 
written addendum that will be posted as a link on the City’s home page at www.staytonregon.gov.  
It shall be the Consultant’s responsibility to ensure they have received any and all addenda before 
submitting a Proposal.  Any addendum issued by the City shall become part of the RFP and shall be 
incorporated in the Proposal where applicable.   
 
To avoid any miscommunications, each Consultant shall in its Proposal acknowledge any City issued 
addenda.  Failure of a Consultant to receive or acknowledge receipt of any addenda shall not relieve 
the Consultant of the responsibility for complying with the terms thereof.   

1.5 – Preliminary Schedule 
Proposals submitted should define an appropriate detailed work plan and provide a graphic 
schedule of the major work tasks with project milestones in accordance with the preliminary scope 
of work presented in Section 3.  The following is a preliminary schedule.  The City reserves the right 
to modify this schedule at the City’s discretion. 
 

Activity/Event Anticipated Date 
Call for Proposals (detail on City’s Website) July 21, 2023 
Written Question/Clarification Deadline August 15, 2023, by 2:00 p.m. 
Proposal Due Date August 22, 2023, by 2:00 p.m. 
Staff Recommendation September 20, 2023 
City Council Approval October 2, 2023 
Notice to Proceed October 9, 2023 
Kick-off Meeting November 1, 2023 
Completion of Work January 15, 2025 

1.6 – Limitations 
The City assumes no responsibility or liability for costs incurred by the Consultant in the preparation 
of a Proposal, in the submission or presentation of a Proposal, or in making the necessary studies 
for the preparation thereof in response to the RFP.  Consultant agrees to bear all costs incurred or 

17

mailto:lludwick@staytonoregon.gov
http://www.staytonregon.gov/


 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 5 of 22 

related to the preparation, submission, and selection process for the Proposal.   All Proposals 
submitted will become part of the City’s public record, without obligation to the City.   
 
This RFP does not commit the City to award a Contract.  The City reserves the right, in its sole and 
absolute discretion, to accept or reject any or all Proposals, or alternative Proposals, in whole or in 
part, with or without cause.  The City also reserves the right to cancel this RFP or the contract award 
at any time before execution of the contract by both parties, if cancellation is deemed to be in the 
best interest of the City.  In no event shall the City have any liability for the cancellation of a 
contract award. 
 
City also expressly reserves the right to: 

A. Waive, or not waive, informalities or irregularities in Proposals or Proposal submittal 
procedures, and to accept or further negotiate cost, terms, or conditions of any Proposal 
determined by the City even though not the lowest cost Proposal submitted.  

B. Request additional information or interviews from any or all Consultants.  
C. Not to consider any Proposal which it determines to be unresponsive and deficient in any of 

the information requested within the RFP.  
D. Determine whether the scope of the project will be entirely as described in the RFP, a 

portion of the scope, or a revised scope be implemented.  
E. Disqualify Proposals that fail to respond to any requirements outlined in the RFP, or failure 

to enclose copies of the required documents outlined within the RFP. 
F. Request revisions of any Proposal after the date and time due and before award for the 

purpose of obtaining best and final offers. 
G. Request references and other data to determine responsiveness.   
H. The City may perform, at its sole option, investigations of any Consultant.  Information may 

include, but shall not necessarily be limited to, current litigation and contracting references. 
All such documents, if requested by the City, become part of the public record and may be 
disclosed accordingly.  

I. Retain all Proposals submitted and to use any ideas presented in a Proposal regardless of 
whether that Proposal is selected.  

 
Should any doubt or difference of opinion arise between the City and a Consultant as to the items to 
be furnished hereunder or the interpretation of the provisions of this RFP, the decision of the City 
shall be final and binding upon all parties.  

1.7 – Public Records 
Any material submitted by the proposer shall become the property of the City unless otherwise 
specified. During the evaluation of proposals and the selection of the Consultant, the proposals shall 
be confidential.  After the selection process has been completed, the proposals shall be open to 
public inspection.  Proposals should not contain any information which the proposers do not wish to 
become public.  If it is necessary to submit confidential information in order to comply with the 
terms and conditions of this RFP, each page containing confidential information should be clearly 
marked "NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE CONFIDENTIAL TRADE SECRETS”.  The City accepts no 
liability for the inadvertent or unavoidable release of any confidential information submitted, and 

18



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 6 of 22 

claims arising out of any public record request for such information shall be at the proposer's 
expense. 

1.8 – Proposal Withdrawal 
A Proposal may be withdrawn at any time before the date and time indicated in Section 1.3 – 
Proposal Due Date and Issuing Office, by providing a written request for the withdrawal of the 
Proposal to the Public Works Director at the place indicated in Section 1.3 – Proposal Due Date and 
Issuing Office.  A duly authorized representative of the firm shall execute the request.  Withdrawal 
of a Proposal will not prejudice the right of the Consultant to file a new proposal on this or future 
RFPs by the City. 

1.9 – Proposal Protests  
All Proposal protests must be in writing and filed with the City at the place indicated in Section 1.3 – 
Proposal Due Date and Issuing Office within seven (7) business days of the award action.  The 
Consultant must clearly state the reasons for the protest.  The Public Works Director will provide 
the protester with the appropriate instructions for filing the protest.  The protest will be reviewed 
by the Public Works Director or designee whose decision shall be final.  

1.10 – Recycled Products Statement 
Vendors shall use recyclable products to the maximum extent economically feasible in the 
performance of the contract work set forth in this document, including the preparation of the 
proposals, and the selected Consultant shall continue the same practice in the performance of the 
contract work in accordance with ORS 279B.270. 

 Section 2 - Proposal Requirements 
2.1 – General Information 
To be considered, each Consultant must submit a response to this RFP using the format described 
below.  The Proposal must be signed in ink by an official authorized to bind the Consultant to its 
provisions.  Each Proposal must remain valid for at least sixty (60) days from the due date of this 
RFP. 
 
Proposals shall be prepared simply and economically providing a straightforward, concise 
description of the Consultant’s ability to meet the requirements of the RFP.  No erasures are 
permitted.  Mistakes may be crossed out and corrected and must be initialed in ink by the person 
signing the Proposal.  Each proposal will be judged on the completeness and quality of the content, 
and as a demonstration of Consultant's qualifications. 
 
Proposals shall not be more than 20 pages and have not less than 11pt font.  Front and back covers, 
as well as section dividers, are not counted in the page limit requirements.  Each page shall be 8-
1/2”x11”, unless otherwise noted.  When using double-sided printing, each side of the page is 
counted as one page.  All additional supporting information shall be presented in a separate section 
at the end of the Proposal and are not counted towards the page limit requirements. 

19



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 7 of 22 

A proposal exceeding the specified number of pages, and/or having less than the minimum text font 
size, will be considered non-responsive and the Proposal will not be considered.  Consultants may 
also be excluded from further consideration if the Consultant’s insurance coverage is unsatisfactory. 

2.2 – Contents of the Proposal 

2.2.1 – Introductory Letter/Narrative 
The introductory letter/narrative shall include, but need not be limited to, the following 
information: 

A. The name of the firm, as well as, the signature, printed name and title, telephone and fax
number of the employee authorized to represent Consultant in any correspondence,
negotiations and sign any contracts that may result.

B. The address of the office that will be providing the service, a project manager’s name, phone
numbers, and email address.

C. A statement that the Proposal complies with the terms and conditions of this RFP, including
that the proposal is valid for sixty (60) days after the submission deadline, and acknowledge
any City issued addenda.

D. Written affirmation that the firm has a policy of nondiscrimination in employment, and
employment positions are open to all persons without regard to race, religion, color,
national origin, sex, age, marital status, disability or political affiliation.

E. The Federal and State tax identification numbers, and the State of incorporation, as
applicable.

The Consultant may use this section to introduce the Proposal, summarize the Consultant’s range of 
capabilities, and to summarize the key provisions of the Proposal. 

2.2.2 – Table of Contents 
Include a clear identification of the material by sections and page numbers. 

2.2.3 – Key Personnel Qualifications 
Provide a statement that portrays how the qualifications and experience of the Consultant’s key 
personnel relate to the described work.  The City expects commitment and prefers no reshuffling of 
personnel during the SWMP update.  Consultant shall address the following: 

A. Identify all key personnel and their roles and relationships in the project, and any familiarity
with the City of Stayton.

B. Include a summary of each key personnel’s education and work history with specific
emphasis on recent experience in performing similar tasks to those proposed for this
project.  Identify any applicable registrations.

C. List specific references for each key personnel including former clients (contact names,
phone numbers, and E-mail addresses).  Resumes, references and public client list can be
provided as additional supporting information as further outlined in Section 2.2.6 –
Additional Supporting Information.

20



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 8 of 22 

2.2.4 – Project Scope and Understanding of the Work 
Consultant shall address the following: 

A. Include a statement of understanding of the proposed work. 
B. Provide a detailed work plan that outlines the phases of work and the relationship of the 

proposed tasks to the objectives of the SWMP update. The Work Plan should include 
proposed methods of investigation, analysis, and design as appropriate.  Key elements of the 
Work Plan shall include: 

1. An expanded outline of all work tasks.  Include an explanation of any modifications of 
the work items and scope of work presented in the Proposal. Modifications shall be 
provided as separate additive or deductive tasks. 

2. Detailed work schedule for each task, including time frames, and estimated staff 
hours committed to each task.  If the project can be completed in a shorter 
timeframe than the “Preliminary Schedule” noted under Section 1.5, please indicate 
the proposed schedule.  If more time is needed, please explain.  City staff requires 
fourteen (14) calendar days to review of each submittal from Consultant and the City 
Council requires thirty (30) calendar days to approve contracts and amendments. 
Consultant shall reflect these time requirements in their schedule. 

3. List all proposed sub-consultants, including their planned scope of work, estimated 
cost of services, key project staff, and references (contact names, phone numbers, 
and email addresses). 

4. Description organized by task of City’s anticipated role and approximate time 
requirements to assist in development of the plan.  Include specific deliverables 
needed from the City. 

5. Detailed description of Consultant deliverables, including support documentation 
and the technical reports that the Consultant will submit at the set milestones.  The 
Consultant should include a description of all computer software (including version) 
proposed for the project, including word processing, spreadsheet, mapping, graphics 
and technical models, display graphics used for public meetings, and electronic files. 

6. Description of how the Consultant will coordinate work with City staff as the plan is 
developed.  Include a discussion of the process used to share information with the 
City’s project team, anticipated process for periodic review as the plan is developed, 
including the type, format, and frequency of meetings. 

7. The format of the completed SWMP shall be recommended by the Consultant for 
City consideration.  

8. Include a separate and specific description of each point in the RFP that is not 
completely met by the Proposal. Indicate if an alternate approach to the RFP task(s) 
is proposed.  If the Consultant has covered all the requested items, then this section 
shall include the statement, "All RFP items have been covered in this Proposal". 

2.2.5 – Project Schedule 
Prepare a project schedule for each significant segment of the work, from “Notice to Proceed” to 
project completion.  A folded 11” x 17” size project schedule will be allowed. 

21



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 9 of 22 

2.2.6 – Additional Supporting Information 
Supporting materials should include only resumes, references and public client list.  The reference 
list shall have no more than five (5) most recent clients with projects similar to this one.  Please 
include the name, address, phone number, and e-mail of the contact person for each reference. 
Detail the type of work done that supports the listed requirements in this RFP.  Indicate if the listed 
projects were delivered on time and on budget.  If there is no additional information to present, 
state: "There is no additional information we wish to present".  If requested by the City, the 
Consultant shall provide one (1) copy of a similar SWMP recently completed for another 
municipality by the Consultant. 

2.3 – Consultant’s Fee Schedule 
Consultant shall not include the fee schedule in the Proposal, but it shall be included as a separate 
submittal as previously indicated in Section 1.3 – Proposal Due Date and Issuing Office.  Include total 
estimated costs of services and costs for each major work task listed in the detailed work plan.  
Once the Consultant is tentatively selected, the City will negotiate a final, detailed scope and 
agreement.   The Consultant shall submit all-inclusive fees, as negotiated, for which the requested 
work will be done, including sub-consultant fees, broken down as follows: 

A. Cost estimate, including hours by work task and total hours. 
B. Identify by Consultant’s personnel category and individual staff, the total hours multiplied by 

Consultant’s proposed hourly billing rate. 
C. The fee should include all out-of-pocket costs (travel, printing, etc.) and a fee should be 

stated for each segment or each phase of the project. 
D. Describe the method Consultant would use in charging for any special requests, reports or 

broadening of the scope of work described here. 
E. All wages and salaries shall remain the same throughout the duration of this project. 

However, if Consultant’s cost of living adjustments should fall in this same time period, the 
total cost shall be clearly stated to reflect the change, and the effective date noted 
accordingly. 

2.4 – Insurance Requirements 
The selected Consultant will be required to comply with the City’s indemnifications requirements 
and minimum insurance coverage of 2 million dollars professional liability insurance, plus 2 million 
dollars comprehensive general liability insurance, plus 1 million dollars automobile and property 
damage liability insurance.  See the sample contract (professional services agreement) in Appendix 
A for the insurance requirements. 

2.5 – Local/State/Federal Requirements 
The selected Consultant shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws, regulations, executive 
orders, and ordinances applicable to the work under this contract, including, without limitation, the 
applicable provisions of ORS 279B and the following, as amended: 

A. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 
B. Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 
C. The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; 
D. All regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and 

22



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 10 of 22 

E. All other applicable requirements of State and Federal civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, 
rules and regulations. 

 
The selected Consultant is subject to the Oregon Worker’s Compensation Law and shall comply with 
ORS 656.017, which requires the provision of Worker’s Compensation coverage for all employees 
working under this contract.  The City of Stayton's programs, services, employment opportunities 
and volunteer positions are open to all persons without regard to race, religion, color, national 
origin, sex, age, marital status, disability or political affiliation. 
 
Consultant selection is not a guarantee of a contract award, nor is the award of a contract for any 
portion of the Work a guarantee of award of a contract for any subsequent work.  All work is subject 
to budgetary and funding constraints of the City.  

 Section 3 – Preliminary Scope of Work 
3.1 – General 
It is the City’s express desire to enter into a written Contract which includes all services necessary to 
complete this RFP.  The final scope of work and Consultant fee will be negotiated with the selected 
Consultant until an agreement can be reached towards a contract.  If an agreement cannot be 
reached, City may terminate negotiations and undertake negotiations with the next most qualified 
Consultant and continue the same process until an agreement is reached.  Contingent upon the 
negotiated fees and available budget, City may request additional tasks be added to refine the 
scope of work. 
 
The Consultant is encouraged to propose changes or additions to the preliminary scope of work if 
Consultant believes that these changes provide substantial benefit.  These proposed modifications 
shall be noted as separate additive or deductive tasks.  The following preliminary work tasks are the 
minimum services that the City determines necessary for the SWMP update. 

3.2 – Preliminary Work Tasks 

3.2.1 – Task 1 – Project Management 
Consultant shall manage the scope of work and act as a manager of Consultant’s team, including 
any sub-consultants, coordinate all components of the SWMP update and take a proactive role in 
keeping all tasks on budget, on schedule and ensure timely completion of all tasks.  Consultant shall 
work with City staff and their Consultants and be responsive to any email and telephone 
discussions. 
 
The City will establish a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) consisting of City management staff, 
Consultant staff, and representation from the Santiam Water Control District to provide review and 
feedback concerning study recommendations and improvement options.  The Consultant shall 
schedule milestones throughout the project and submit technical reports to the TAC at these 
milestones.  The Consultant shall set the TAC meeting schedule and notify all members. 
 

23



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 11 of 22 

The City will establish a Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) consisting of elected and appointed 
officials and citizens to provide direction in the development of policies that will be reflected in the 
plan recommendations and stormwater system improvement options.  The Consultant shall 
schedule milestones throughout the project and submit draft chapters to the CAC at these 
milestones.  The Consultant shall set the CAC meeting schedule and notify all members. 
 
Consultant shall coordinate, schedule, prepare and facilitate up to twelve (12) project team 
meetings, including a kickoff meeting, with City staff during the duration of the SWMP update.  
Consultant shall identify roles and responsibilities of all project team members.  All agendas, 
minutes, and supporting information shall be distributed via emails five (5) business days in advance 
of the meeting to City. 
 
Consultant shall initiate the project kickoff meeting within two (2) weeks of contract execution. 
Consultant shall prepare an agenda for the kickoff meeting, invite necessary attendees, collect data, 
provide a list of key questions they have about the project or stormwater system conditions, and 
discuss the schedule of the project. 
 
Consultant shall keep City informed of project progress with monthly status updates for all tasks. 
Indicate any critical timeline and major milestones.  Report any outstanding issues and how to 
resolve them.  Project updates can be submitted to City with invoices.  Indicate hours spent by 
Consultant team on each task since the previous invoice.  Submit a summary report of work 
completed by tasks with each invoice.  Notify the City if any issues or concerns may affect project 
progress.  Update and email a detailed project schedule each month to City. 
 
Consultant is expected to provide quality control over all deliverables, work independently, and 
assume full responsibility in research and acquiring any data and product information for the proper 
evaluation, analysis, preparation and completion of the SWMP update.  Consultant shall allow an 
adequate review and response period to address technical, graphic and text presentation, design 
approach, sustainability and constructability issues. 
 
Consultant shall coordinate with applicable state agencies (DEQ, OWRD, etc.) and Marion County 
jurisdictions on their current stormwater infrastructure, drainage concerns, and anticipated capital 
improvements within the City’s UGB. Coordination is critical to the success of the SWMP update.   
 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. Project schedule with updates. 
B. Meeting schedules, agendas and minutes. 
C. Submit technical reports to the TAC and CAC. 
D. Detailed invoices with progress reports. 

3.2.2 – Task 2 – Existing Study Area Characteristics 
Consultant shall evaluate and describe the study area and its physical characteristics.  Provide 
natural and political boundaries, elevations, and other pertinent information.  Discuss pertinent 
land use and planning criteria, as well as population, demographics, physical environment, and 
socio-economic environment information.   
 

24



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 12 of 22 

As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 
A. A technical memo summarizing the existing study area characteristics.

3.2.3 – Task 3 – Stormwater System Hydrologic and Hydraulic Design Criteria 
Consultant shall evaluate and describe the stormwater system design criteria to be used for 
evaluating the existing stormwater system and for future stormwater system improvements.  
Discuss the design storm events, hydrologic methodology, and hydraulic methodology that were 
used for the stormwater analysis and design calculations.  Provide a stormwater system design 
criteria comparison table showing neighboring municipality standards, industry standards, and state 
and federal stormwater regulations. 

As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 
A. A technical memo summarizing the stormwater system hydrologic and hydraulic design

criteria.

3.2.4 – Task 4 – Existing Stormwater System Inventory and Condition Assessment 
Consultant shall conduct a system inventory of the City’s existing stormwater system and associated 
stormwater facilities.  The stormwater system inventory shall document the stormwater facility, 
agency responsible for operation/maintenance, type of pipe/structure/facility, size, flow direction, 
age, a cursory assessment of the condition of the facilities, and any notable issues with the facilities’ 
existing operations.  Consultant shall inventory and analyze any existing Underground Injection 
Control (UIC) systems for compliance with the required separation distance to groundwater.  All 
minor and major existing stormwater system and associated stormwater facilities shall be 
inventoried.  City will assist in the system inventory by providing the necessary access for visual 
inspection of the facilities and by providing available as-built drawings of the system for review and 
data transfer.  Consultant shall make site visits with City staff to specific facilities as necessary.   

Consultant shall conduct interviews with City staff to collect information on the operation and 
maintenance of the system and any known deficiencies. Additional interviews may be necessary for 
stormwater systems under Marion County and other agency jurisdictions.  Provide a description and 
evaluation of the current operation and maintenance (O&M) requirements of the system.   

Consultant shall submit a list of information to be collected and provided by the City.  The provided 
information shall be reviewed by the Consultant to determine if it is sufficient for completion of the 
project objectives.  If the information is not sufficient, the Consultant shall suggest alternatives.   

Consultant shall develop a database to assess the condition of the existing stormwater system.  The 
database shall separate the existing stormwater system into various stormwater elements, such as 
stormwater detention facilities, natural infrastructure, pipes, catch basins, UIC’s, etc. Consultant 
shall develop a rating system to apply to the existing stormwater system elements and rank each 
element based on highest priority of replacement or repair.  The rating system shall be a numerical 
points system based on items such as need for increased capacity, existing deficiencies, and years 
left in expected life cycle.  Consultant shall design the database to be clear and simple for City Staff 
to update on an annual basis.  The City will use the database to determine priority for capital 
improvement projects for each fiscal year. 

25



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 13 of 22 

 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. A technical memo summarizing the existing stormwater system inventory and condition 
assessment. 

B. List of information to be collected and provided by the City. 
C. Copy of the condition assessment database. 

3.2.5 – Task 5 – Stormwater Model Development 
Consultant shall review and update the City’s existing XP-SWMM hydrologic and hydraulic modeling 
of the existing stormwater conveyance system in all drainage basins.  The updated hydraulic model 
shall best reflect the existing stormwater system and provide sufficient detail to identify hydraulic 
constraints, analyze pipe flows, analyze channel and conduit overflows, and quantify the effects of 
detention, infiltration, stormwater quality treatments, surcharge and overflow storage.   
 
Consultant shall identify any open channel and overland flow reaches for the purpose of system 
modeling, which feed, drains, or connects drainage structures.  This may require Consultant to 
obtain data for flows into and out of the City.  Consultant shall collect field data necessary for 
modeling.  Provide a table for any data collected, listing relevant reaches and their respective 
modeling characteristics.  Execute the model based on existing and future build-out conditions for a 
series of 24-hour rainfall events for the 2-, 5-, 10-, 25-, and 100-year 24-hour storm events.  
Consultant shall document all development assumptions used for the updated model.   
 
Consultant shall identify trouble spots according to the criteria developed above and identify 
locations for facilities that show potential strategic value as detention, stormwater quality, or 
controlled surcharge flood storage areas based on geography, ownership, capacity, land value and 
development potential. 
 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. A technical memo summarizing the hydrologic and hydraulic studies. 
B. Flow models for current and future improved infrastructure. 
C. Shape file of current and future improved infrastructure compatible with City’s GIS software. 
D. Training of two City staff to use the updated flow model. 

3.2.6 – Task 6 – Existing Stormwater System Analysis 
Consultant shall use the updated existing stormwater system model to analyze the functionality of 
the existing stormwater system.  Provide a detailed current conditions report with problem 
descriptions and generate a map of those known conditions by type.  Consultant shall use the model 
to determine peak flow capacity and identify those problem areas that have surcharge, overflow, 
undersized pipes, and any other deficiencies, and/or inefficiencies.  Evaluate opportunities for 
regional stormwater management facilities by identifying locations that have potential value for 
stormwater detention storage and stormwater quality treatment or retrofit.  Consultant shall 
compare the models with reported flooding areas and high ground water gathered from interviews 
with City staff and other sources.  Provide a recommendation for the design criteria. 
 

26



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 14 of 22 

Consultant shall evaluate the opportunities to incorporate stormwater quality retrofits to any 
component of the existing storm drainage system and list the recommended retrofit projects in the 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Include a cost and ranking in the CIP.  Consultant shall provide 
recommendations for possible stormwater retrofit projects with regards to the City’s TMDL Action 
Plan. 
 
Consultant shall provide recommendations and add the compliance measures to the CIP as a project 
for ranking and funding to bring existing Underground Injection Control (UIC) systems into state and 
federal regulatory compliance.  Include a cost and ranking in the CIP. 
 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. Technical memo identifying problem areas and recommended actions including cost 
estimates.  Cost estimates shall include appropriate markups including surveying, 
engineering and inspection work by a consultant, construction by a contractor, and all 
administration by City staff.   

B. List of deficiencies including reported areas of flooding and flood occurrences as determined 
from the hydraulic models.  

C. Technical memo on recommendations for regional stormwater detention and stormwater 
quality facilities. Recommendations for surface or underground facilities should consider 
groundwater elevations in the immediate area.  

D. Map of the recommended improvements, including recommended regional stormwater 
detention and stormwater quality facilities. 

3.2.7 – Task 7 – Future Stormwater System Analysis 
Consultant shall use the updated stormwater system model to analyze the future scenario of the 
stormwater system.  The ultimate stormwater system shall be able to serve all buildable areas 
within the City’s UGB.  Population growth should be reflected in prioritizing future capital 
improvement plan projects.   
 
Consultant shall analyze all planning data and demographics by flow basins or sub-basins.  Any 
change to, or addition of, any flow basin boundaries shall be carefully determined.  Consultant shall 
provide the most logical stormwater system extensions to the unserved areas, using the City’s 
current Transportation System Plan as a general guide.  Consider possible trunk lines.  When no 
streets are planned, stormwater system extension should be very general in nature. 
 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. Technical memo on recommended improvements based on future full build-out conditions 
including cost estimates.  Cost estimates shall include appropriate markups including 
surveying, engineering and inspection work by a consultant, construction by a contractor, 
and all administration by City staff. 

B. List of reported areas of flooding and flood occurrences as determined from the hydraulic 
models.  

C. Technical memo on recommendations for regional stormwater detention and stormwater 
quality facilities. 

D. Map of the recommended full build-out conditions. 

27



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 15 of 22 

3.2.8 – Task 8 – Stormwater Quality and State and Federal Regulatory Requirements 
Consultant shall review and compile applicable stormwater related state and federal regulatory 
programs and requirements.  Summarize each of the various program requirements and the City’s 
current position with regards to each of them.  Provide recommendations necessary for the City to 
comply with the state and federal regulatory requirements. 
 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. Technical memo on stormwater quality and state and federal regulatory requirements. 

3.2.9 – Task 9 – Stormwater Operation and Maintenance Evaluation 
Consultant shall evaluate the current staff and resource levels, analyze the level of services 
provided, differentiate proactive versus reactive services, review the standards and procedures for 
the maintenance of the system, and recommend ways to optimize current staffing levels, including 
recommend maintenance activities and frequency.  Provide documentation showing current, 
recommended and projected staffing levels based on system size and population served.  Document 
a comparison with other neighboring municipalities of similar sized systems. 
 
Consultant shall recommend an annual stormwater operation and maintenance program, identify 
work to be performed by public works staff and/or external contractors, and provide estimated 
annual costs for the operation and maintenance activities. 
 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. Technical memo analyzing staffing levels and recommending ways to optimize current levels 
of maintenance activities and frequency. 

B. Technical memo providing recommended maintenance functions and staffing levels for 
current and future stormwater system. 

3.2.10 – Task 10 – Recommendations and Capital Improvement Plan 
From the tasks previously completed, summarize the recommended improvements and prepare a 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  Consultant shall group recommended stormwater system 
improvements into capital improvement plan projects, with planning level cost estimates prepared 
for each project, to aid the City in scheduling and planning improvements in a phased manner.  
Consultant shall differentiate projects which are necessary due to current problems, those that are 
required to serve existing developed areas, and those that are required in anticipation of future 
growth.  List all the criteria for ranking the projects and prioritize accordingly. 
 
Consultant shall show the recommended short range (1-5 years), mid-range (6-10 years), and long 
range (11-20 years) projects through the forecast year.  Consultant shall provide separate detailed 
maps for each of the recommended short and mid-range projects depicting the location of the 
project, a quick summary of the project, and the estimated project cost.   
 
To reduce the need for additional or larger outfalls, priority should be given to projects such as 
natural infrastructure which will infiltrate, slow down, and detain stormwater flows.  Any 
improvements at the outfalls such as riparian restoration, pipe replacement, stabilization, or erosion 
control should take into account regulatory and permitting considerations.  Cost-effective 

28



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 16 of 22 

improvements which provide additional benefits to the City including environmental, public health, 
recreation amenities, and neighborhood beautification are recommended for consideration.  
 
As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 

A. A descriptive summary for each CIP project. 
B. Overview CIP project maps. 
C. Cost basis information for each CIP project. 
D. An estimate of the percentage each CIP project will serve existing development and is 

necessary to serve future growth. 

3.2.11 – Task 11 – Stormwater System Financing Plan, System Development Charge 
Update, and Storm Drainage Utility Monthly Rate Update  
Consultant shall review and develop a Financing Plan evaluating funding mechanisms, storm 
drainage system development charge, and storm drainage utility monthly rates (individually or in 
combination), for recommended capital improvements and/or the operations, maintenance, and 
management of the City’s storm drainage system over a 20-year period.  
 
Consultant shall recommend a new storm drainage system development charge (SDC), including 
improvement, reimbursement, and administrative fees, in accordance with State of Oregon SDC 
statutes.  Consultant shall provide a brief decision matrix and recommendation in deciding which 
stormwater SDC methodology will best meet the needs of the City.  As part of the methodology 
evaluation, Consultant shall review and evaluate the latest SDC methodology recommendations 
with City staff. 
 
Consultant shall compile the SDC project list, including project costs, using the capital improvements 
plan and input from City staff.  Consultant shall identify estimated costs for each of the stormwater 
system improvements identified in the CIP and shall assign a percentage of the cost for each 
improvement that is the result of existing deficiencies and that which is due to growth in demand. 
 
As an appendix to the Financing Plan, Consultant shall identify and analyze key stormwater system 
development charge policy questions and make recommendations on a policy framework and 
methodology. 
 
Consultant shall perform a cost of storm drainage service study and recommend an update to the 
storm drainage monthly utility rates.  The recommended rate structure changes shall be consistent 
with industry practice for utility rate making in the State of Oregon and shall ensure that the 
stormwater utility is fully recovering the cost of providing stormwater services, including analysis of 
the following factors: 

A. Current and future costs of providing stormwater management in accordance with 
established and anticipated standards and regulations. 

B. Current and future costs of maintenance and operation of the stormwater system. 
C. Projected demands. 
D. Availability of capacity. 
E. Funding of capital improvement projects. 
F. Impact of current and future environmental regulations. 

29



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 17 of 22 

G. Adequate reserves for depreciation, emergencies, catastrophes, and other appropriate
purposes.

H. Other impacts as identified.

Consultant shall summarize the impacts of the recommended rate structure and proposed rate on 
ratepayers.  The summary shall include at a minimum the following: 

A. Analysis of the benefits of the recommended rate changes weighed against the financial
impacts to the ratepayers.

B. Justification for any special classes of customers under the recommended rate structure.
C. Assessment of recommended stormwater rates equity for all types of property ownership.

The recommended rate structure shall provide clear and direct identification of annual revenues 
appropriate to fund operating activities, maintenance, and infrastructure improvements.  The 
recommended rate structure shall be compatible with the City’s electronic billing system and 
include an easy-to-use electronic model, in either Microsoft Excel or Access, to be used by the City 
for future rate setting.  Consultant shall compare the proposed new rates to other utilities providing 
stormwater management services in the region.  

Consultant shall review Chapter 13.32 of the Stayton Municipal Code and draft recommended 
amendments consistent with relevant State of Oregon regulations, codes, and state legal 
precedents for the City Council to consider.   

As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 
A. Technical memo on the stormwater system financing plan, system development charge

update, and storm drainage monthly utility rate update.
B. Storm drainage monthly utility rate study model.
C. Suggested amendments to SMC Chapter 13.32.

3.2.12 – Task 12 – Install Groundwater Monitoring Wells and Perform Depth to 
Groundwater Investigation 
The City’s Public Works Design Standards require that stormwater be surface infiltrated onsite to 
the maximum extent feasible before discharging any flows offsite.  The appropriate use of surface 
infiltration depends on a number of factors, including soil type, soil conditions, slopes, and depth to 
groundwater.  The City is known to have high seasonal groundwater elevations in certain areas 
within the City.  As a result, the installation of groundwater monitoring wells is needed throughout 
the City in order to properly monitor the high seasonal groundwater elevations of these areas and 
compile the data necessary to determine what seasonal correction factor shall be used for the 
various basins within the City for the stormwater facility design depth to groundwater 
investigations, as required by the City’s Public Works Design Standards. 

The design, installation, and decommissioning of the groundwater monitoring wells shall be under 
the direction of an Oregon-licensed geotechnical engineer, certified engineering geologist, or 
registered geologist, and shall be properly installed and decommissioned by a licensed well 
constructor in accordance with the State of Oregon monitoring well statutes, and the Oregon Water 
Resources Department’s Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 690, Division 240.  The City will work 

30



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 18 of 22 

with the selected Consultant to help identify some possible locations for the groundwater 
monitoring wells.   

The Oregon-licensed geotechnical engineer, certified engineering geologist, or registered geologist, 
and licensed well contractor is responsible for identifying and procuring all applicable permits, 
licenses, professional registration, and applicable State and local regulatory procedures for drilling, 
well installation, and well abandonment (to include any requirements for the submission of well 
logs, samples, etc.), and shall be responsible for OSHA compliance, work area safety, and other 
applicable health and safety requirements. 

The Oregon-licensed geotechnical engineer, certified engineering geologist, or registered geologist 
shall be present at the installation of each groundwater monitoring well, and shall be familiar and 
comply with all State, federal, and local laws, regulations, and requirements pertaining to the 
geotechnical engineer’s or geologist’s duties and responsibilities.  Each groundwater monitoring 
well should be designed and installed to function properly throughout the duration of the depth to 
groundwater investigation. 

The Oregon-licensed geotechnical engineer, certified engineering geologist, or registered geologist 
shall gather groundwater monitoring well data for the depth to groundwater investigation at each 
groundwater monitoring wells monthly for 2 years, in accordance with standard engineering 
practices.  The monthly depth to groundwater information shall be logged on a tabular data sheet 
for each groundwater monitoring well and shall be submitted via email to the City no later than two 
weeks after each field event. 

Based on the groundwater monitoring well information compiled, Consultant shall recommend 
what seasonal correction factor shall be used for stormwater facility design depth to groundwater 
investigations, and the monthly periods as to when the seasonal correction factor shall apply. 

Following the two-year monitoring period, the Oregon-licensed geotechnical engineer, certified 
engineering geologist, or registered geologist shall supervise the decommissioning of each 
groundwater monitoring well in accordance with applicable State and local procedures. 

As part of this task, Consultant shall provide the City the following items: 
A. A stamped technical memo summarizing the depth to groundwater investigation and the

recommend seasonal correction factor(s), and monthly periods as to when the seasonal
correction factor shall apply, for stormwater facility designs.

B. Detailed information for each groundwater monitoring well location and depth.
C. Overall project map.
D. Monthly depth to groundwater information presented on a tabular data sheet for each

groundwater monitoring well.
E. Certification of well abandonment.

31



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 19 of 22 

3.2.13 – Task 13 – Public Involvement and City Presentations 
Consultant shall include the following public involvement and City presentations.  The public 
involvement and City presentations shall be straightforward and easily understood.  Consultant shall 
be prepared to answer questions from the audience with confidence and visual aids should be 
utilized to enhance the presentation.  Consultant shall allow adequate time and effort for any 
revisions the Council or City staff may require after these meetings.  Consultant shall update or 
create all the current and proposed maps, figures and tables for the final document, as needed.  
Consultant shall conduct and attend the following: 

A. Consultant shall attend one (1) City Council meeting or work session and present the draft
SWMP update for review.

B. Consultant shall attend one (1) Planning Commission public hearing and present the draft
SWMP update for review.

C. Consultant shall attend a City Council public hearing when the City Council members will
adopt the final SWMP update.

3.2.14 – Task 14 – Develop Draft Policy, Code and Ordinance Revisions 
Consultant shall review the Stayton Municipal Code, Public Works Design Standards, and other City 
policy documents and incorporate findings and recommendations as an update to the City’s 
policies, codes, and ordinances that will address both short term and long-term stormwater needs 
for the City over the next twenty years. 

A. Policy, Code, and Ordinance Revisions –
1. Consultant shall review and identify applicable chapters of the City’s Comprehensive

Plan and recommend changes to the Comprehensive Plan based on the results of the
SWMP update. Consultant shall prepare a Comprehensive Plan Amendments Memo
of the recommended changes.  Other documents to be reviewed include any
adopted regional stormwater system plans, any relevant stormwater system planning
reports/documents, existing stormwater agreements, and any land use policies and
regulations that guide the relationship between land use and stormwater facilities.
Master plan mapping shall be provided for inclusion in a future Comprehensive Plan
update. Consultant may be asked to assist City staff with writing brief staff reports
and providing supporting data as needed to supplement the narrative for amending
the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

2. Consultant shall review and identify applicable chapters of the City’s Land Use
Development Code and the Public Works Design Standards, and recommend changes
based on the results of the SWMP update.  Consultant shall prepare a Code
Amendments and Policy Memo of the recommended changes.

B. Draft Implementation Matrix – Consultant shall prepare draft Implementation Matrix as part
of the memo that identifies inconsistencies and missing language in the City’s
Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Development Code, and Public Works Design Standards
necessary to comply with state and federal stormwater requirements and regulations.  Draft
Implementation Matrix must include an outline of applicable state and federal requirements
with relevant sections of Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Development Code, and Public
Works Design Standards.

32



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 20 of 22 

3.2.15 – Task 15 – Final Reports/Documentation 
All final reports, documents, and other work products shall be delivered to and be permanently 
retained by the City.  Prior to final submittals, Consultant shall perform a thorough quality control 
review of all documents for completeness and accuracy.  Documents shall be submitted in written 
and electronic format, and shall be freely reproduced by the City.  The final SWMP update shall be 
printed on 8-1/2”x11” paper.  Charts, graphs, figures, data, digital photographs and exhibits can be 
presented in the reports on 11”x17” paper, if necessary.  Consultant shall provide the City with the 
following final deliverables: 

A. A summary of results of all tasks. 
B. The entire SWMP update document in two (2) spiral-bound paper copies and six (6) paper 

copies in heavy duty 3-ring binders. 
C. The entire SWMP update document on a thumb drive or a compact disk, in Adobe Portable 

Document Format (PDF), and in the original electronic formats, as applicable: 
1. Microsoft documents (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Project, etc.) 
2. CAD maps.  The City's CAD system consists of a windows-based environment utilizing 

AutoDesk Civil3D 2020 
3. GIS shape files.  The City’s GIS system consists of a windows-based environment 

utilizing ArcGIS Desktop 10.8 
Consultant shall provide a final electronic copy of the CAD maps, hydraulic model, storm drainage 
system condition assessment database, and storm drainage monthly utility rate study model. 

 Section 4 – Proposal Evaluation and Selection 
4.1 – Evaluation and Selection Criteria 
The City will follow the applicable provisions of the Oregon Revised Statute 279C.110 et seq.  The 
evaluation will be done through a stakeholder review of the Proposal looking for the Consultant 
exhibiting the best understanding of the project scope, goals, challenges, innovative solutions and 
the work plan to achieve a finished project.  The successful firm must have excellent credentials for 
quality assurance/quality control.  The selection criteria will be based on the following minimum 
requirements: 

A. Overall quality of the submitted proposal. 
B. Professional qualifications, which may include but not be limited to, specialized experience, 

technical competencies, methodology to the project. 
C. Record of past performance, including but not limited to, price and cost data from previous 

projects, quality of work, ability to meet schedules, cost controls and cost administration. 
D. Reference checks, as necessary. 

 
The maximum possible points for each item of information described in Section 2 are shown in the 
following table. 
 
 
 
 

33



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 21 of 22 

PROPOSAL CONTENT AND EVALUATION CRITERIA MAXIMUM SCORE 

1. Introductory Letter/Narrative 5 
2. Table of Contents 0 
3. Key Personnel Qualifications 40 
4. Project Scope and Understanding of the Work 40 
5. Project Schedule (11” x 17” allowed) 10 
6. Additional supporting information 5 
           Totals 100 

4.2 – Final Selection and Award 
Final selection will be made by the City Council following review and ranking of the Proposals by the 
City selection review committee.  To assist in making a selection, interviews may be conducted at 
the discretion of the City.  Contract award will be subject to approval of the City Council and its City 
Attorney. 

4.3 – Contract Execution 
The selected Consultant will be expected to sign a written Contract (Professional Services 
Agreement) which incorporates appropriate parts of this RFP and the selected Consultant’s 
Proposal.  The written Contract will also require that the selected Consultant comply with applicable 
local, state and federal laws, rules and regulations.  A sample of the written Contract is included in 
Appendix A.  Those who wish to submit a Proposal to the City are required to carefully review the 
sample Contract and shall specifically note the indemnification and insurance requirements listed. 
 
Within five (5) business days after City Council approval of the selection, City and Consultant will 
finalize the written Contract (Professional Services Agreement).  Work shall begin expeditiously 
after issuance of the City’s “Notice To Proceed”, which will be provided to Consultant after the 
execution of the Contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
  

 

City of Stayton – Stormwater Master Plan Update Page 22 of 22 

Appendices 
Attachment A – Sample Contract (Professional Services Agreement) 
 

35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



 RESOLUTION NO. 1086 
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR STORM WATER MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

 

 
Resolution No. 1086                     Page 1 of 1 
Award of Storm Water Master Plan Update Contract 

 
WHEREAS, in 2009 the Stayton City Council adopted the current Storm Water Master Plan (SWMP); 
 
WHEREAS, the population growth rate was estimated to be 3.35 % for the next 20 years and the Urban 
Growth Boundary was projected to be built out around 2032;  
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Projects identified for the 20-year planning horizon were very aggressive and do 
not seem feasible;  
 
WHEREAS, the City updated its Comprehensive Plan in 2013, with a revised Comprehensive Plan Map; 
 
WHEREAS, the assumptions for development patterns in 2009 SWMP are no longer in compliance;    
 
WHEREAS, the Storm Water Master Plan Update Request for Proposals was advertised on July 21, 
2023; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Received one (1) proposal from Keller Associates of Salem, Oregon; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff reviewed and scored the Keller proposal and it was recommended staff negotiate 
a final cost for preparing the Storm Water Master Plan Update. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  

 
 Section 1: The Stayton City Council authorizes the City Manager to enter into an agreement 

with Keller Associates to perform the Storm Water Master Plan Update. 
 
This Resolution shall be effective following its adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 16TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2024. 
 
        CITY OF STAYTON 
 
Date:     , 2024   By:       
         Brian Quigley, Mayor 
 
 
Date:     , 2024   By:       
         Julia Hajduk, City Manager 

73



 

Resolution No. 1088, Budget Committee Appointments   Page 1 of 1  
January 16, 2024 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

TO:      Mayor Brian Quigley and the Stayton City Council 
 

FROM:    Alissa Angelo, Assistant City Manager 
 

DATE:     January 16, 2024 
 

SUBJECT:    Budget Committee Appointments 
   
 

ISSUE 
Shall the Council approve Resolution No. 1088, appointing Denise Busch and Leonard Hays to three‐year terms 
on the Budget Committee? 

 
ENCLOSURE(S) 

 Budget Committee Appointment Application – Denise Busch 

 Budget Committee Appointment Application – Leonard Hays 

 Resolution No. 1088 

 
STAFF RECOMENDATION 
N/A 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
The Budget Committee is comprised of the City Council and six community members. As of January 2024, the 

Budget Committee has three vacancies.  

City  staff  received  applications  requesting  appointment  to  the  Budget  Committee  from  Denise  Busch  and 

Leonard Hays. The applications were  forwarded  to  the Finance Director and Budget Committee Chair Brian 

Quigley. Both reviewed the applications and recommended appointment to the Budget Committee.  

FISCAL IMPACT 
N/A 

 
MOTION(S) 
No motion necessary; consent agenda approval. 

74



75



76



77



78



 RESOLUTION NO. 1088 
APPOINTING DENISE BUSCH AND LEONARD HAYS  

TO THE BUDGET COMMITTEE  
 

 

Resolution No. 1088, Budget Committee Appointments                 Page 1 of 1 

 
WHEREAS, the Budget Committee is comprised of the City Council and six community members; 

WHEREAS, as of January 2024 the Budget Committee has three vacancies;   

WHEREAS, community members Denise Busch and Leonard Hays submitted applications seeking 
appointment to the Budget Committee;  

WHEREAS, the applications for appointment were forwarded to the Department Head and 
Budget Committee Chair who recommend both candidates for appointment; and 

WHEREAS, Council has reviewed the applicants and concurs with the recommended 
appointments. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Council accepts Mayor Quigley’s appointment of Denise Busch and Leonard Hays to 
three-year terms on the Budget Committee.  

This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption by the Stayton City Council. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 16TH DAY OF JANUARY 2024. 

 
CITY OF STAYTON 

 

Signed: ___________, 2024  By: __________________________________________ 
      Mayor Brian Quigley, Mayor 

 

Signed: ___________, 2024         ATTEST:_______________________________________ 
    Julia Hajduk, City Manager 

79


	24 0116 - January 16 2024 City Council Meeting Agenda
	December 18 2023 Work Session Minutes
	December 18 2023 Minutes
	1086 - Stormwater Master Plan Staff Report
	ISSUE
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	FINANCIAL IMPACT

	City Request for Proposal
	Keller Associates Proposal
	1086 - Stormwater Master Plan
	1088 - Budget Committee Appointment Staff Report
	REDACTED - Budget Committee Application - Busch, Denise
	REDACTED - Budget Committee Application - Hays, Leonard
	1088 - Budget Committee Appointment



